
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Post Office Box 579  Chair Lee Finney: 443-569-9756 
Fort Bragg, CA  95437 Treasurer Jade Tippett: 707-489-4986 

 
 

    July xx, 2013 

To: 

Savings Bank of Mendocino County 

Fort Bragg Banking Center 

490 S. Franklin Street 

Fort Bragg, CA 95437 

 

RE: All accounts owned by the Mendocino Coast Health Care District or 

otherwise registered or associated with the Mendocino Coast Health 

Care District’s Federal EIN: 95-2627981 

This letter responds to the criteria described in an email to Sara Spring, dated 

August 16, 2022, delivered to current Board Treasurer Jade Tippett in late 

January or early February of this year by Danica Henman of the Savings Bank Fort 

Bragg Branch. 

Please find attached: 

 Board Minutes of the Mendocino Coast Health Care District Board of 

January 12, containing the record of the election of officers and the vote of 

the Board to appoint Lee Finney, Susan Savage and Jade Tippett as signers 

for all accounts belonging to the Mendocino Coast Health Care District and 

held by the Savings Bank of Mendocino County, including the Secretary’s 

signed attestation that “…all the information contained in these minutes is 

true and correct”. 

 Mendocino Coast Health Care District Resolution 2023-02 appointing Lee 

Finney, Susan Savage and Jade Tippett as signers for accounts owned by the 

Mendocino Coast Health Care District and held by the Savings Bank of 

Mendocino County. 

 Completed and stamped as filed copy of California Secretary of State form 

SF-405, Registry of Public Agencies, the successor document to the 

requested “Statement of Facts Roster of Public Agencies” which is obsolete 

and was rejected by the Secretary of State’s Office of Special Filings when 

the Treasurer attempted to file a completed copy. 

Board of Directors 

 
Lee Finney, Chair 
   lfinney@mcdh.org 
 
Paul Katzeff, Vice Chair 
   pkatzeff@mcdh.org 
 
Susan Savage, Secretary 
   ssavage@mcdh.org 
 
Jade Tippett, Treasurer 
   jtippett@mcdh.org 
 
Sara Spring, Member at Large 
   sspring@mcdh.org 
 



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Post Office Box 579  Chair Lee Finney: 443-569-9756 
Fort Bragg, CA  95437 Treasurer Jade Tippett: 707-489-4986 

 
 

LETTER OF INSTRUCTION 

1. Per Resolution 2023-03, the Authorized Signers will be: Lee Finney, Susan Savage, Jade 

Tippett 

2. Accounts to remain open: It is the intent of the District at this time to inventory the 

accounts held by the Savings Bank of Mendocino County and their intent when 

established, assess what funds they hold and whether those funds rightfully belong to 

the District as Unrestricted Funds, whether they are Restricted by some prior action, or 

whether they are being held in trust for another entity.  Once these facts are 

determined, the District Board will instruct the Treasurer on how to proceed. 

3. Consolidation of accounts: The District at this time holds accounts in three different 

banks, including the Savings Bank of Mendocino County.  Following the completion of 

the financial separation between Adventist Health Mendocino Coast Hospital and the 

District, the District will likely undertake a necessary consolidation of accounts.  At that 

time, the District may be open to proposals as to which banking entity will become the 

primary bank serving the District going forward. 

4. The District certifies that none of the current Board members is a current signer on any 

of the District’s accounts held by the Savings Bank of Mendocino.  

 

Approved by the Board of Directors of the Mendocino Coast Health Care District this 

__________ of ___________, 2023 

 

____________________________      __________________________ 

Lee Finney, Chair    Susan Savage, Secretary 

 

____________________________ __________________________ 

Paul Katzeff, Vice-Chair   Jade Tippett, Treasurer 

 

____________________________ 

Sara Spring, Member at Large 



Danica L. Henman 

From: Danica L. Henman 
Sent: Tuesda , Au ust 16, 2022 11 :04 AM 
To: 
Subject: 

Hi Sara, 

Savings Bank of Mendocino County is requesting the following in regards to the Mendocino Coast Health Care 
District: 

• Corporate Resolution or Board Meeting Minutes (Showing the Board has met and has outlined the 
details of the accounts). This must include a statement and be signed by the Secretary stating "that all 
of the information is true and correct". 

• Letter of Instruction (This must be specific; who will all be authorized signers, what accounts will 
remain open, if any accounts will be closed, consider consolidation of accounts, what to do with the 
Volunteer Accounts (see below)). This must include a statement and be signed by the Secretary stating 
"that all of the information is true and correct". The Bank is requesting that this Letter of Instruction be 

s!gnedbyALLBoardmembers. Ho kf:Pvv~ ~6'J, f'f\~.J ~J\ -+}+Jc... 
• Statement of Facts Roster ofPublic Agencies Filing oiCC-0'-'J',6 

• Contract for Public Funds (to be completed by the Bank and signed by the Board Treasurer at the 
Bank). 

Sara, please contact me to obtain a list of all of the Accounts. We are requiring that each account held in the 
name ofthe Mendocino Coast Health Care District be addressed and updated, this includes the accounts with 
title modifications for the volunteers. If the MCHCD does not have control or have part in this aspect these 
accounts may need to be closed. 

Please let me know if you have any questions. 

Thank you, 

DQ 11\,LCQ tfell\,Vl,i,&t V\, 

Savings Bank of Mendocino County 
cusromer service Representative 3 
Fort Bragg Banking Center 
(707) 964-4723 ext. 2447 
490 5 Franklin Street, Fort Bragg 
PO BOX 3600, Ukiah, CA 95482 
dhenman@savingsbank.com 
www.savinqsbank.com 

'f ester~t.l~, To~~~, "Tomorrow, -ro,etvier Si~te 1Gl03 
1 



Mendocino Coast Healthcare District Board Special Meeting 

MINUTES 

Members Present: Lee Finney, Paul Katzeff, Susan Savage, Sara Spring, Jade Tippett 
Guests: Supervisor Dan Gjerde, Supervisor Ted Williams, Adventist Health representative Judy 
Leach, Mendocino Coast Healthcare Foundation representative Terry Ramos 
Public Attendees: 3 persons from the public attended plus 16 persons via Zoom 

DATE: 
TIME: 

January 12, 2023 
6:00 PM 

PLACE: Redwood Room, Adventist Mendocino Coast Hospital 
700 River Dr. 
Fort Bragg, CA 

I. Call to order- by incumbent Sara Spring at 6:01 PM 

II. Approval of agenda - Sara 
Moved by Jade seconded by Susan to accept the agenda as distributed. Sara requested that 
items dealing with rules of order, retirement savings accounts, minutes of prior board 
meetings, presence & consultation with an attorney, organizational discussion, fiscal 
controls, standing and ad hoc committees, and audit be pulled from the agenda. Susan 
pointed out that a motion to table or continue any item to a future meeting would be 
appropriate at any time. The question was called by Paul. 
VOTE: 
Lee:YES 
Paul: YES 
Susan: YES 
Sara: NO 
Jade: YES 
The agenda as distributed was adopted. 

III. Swearing in of new members - Sara 
Sara welcomed Supervisors Dan Gjerde and Ted Williams. Supervisor Gjerde administered 
the oath of office to incoming Board members Lee Finney, Paul Katzeff, Susan Savage, & 
Jade Tippett 

IV. Election of Chair - Sara 
Jade moved and Susan seconded to nominate Lee Finney for Chair. There being no further 
nominations, the vote was called: 
VOTE: 
Lee: YES 
Paul: YES 
Susan: YES 
Sara: YES 
Jade; YES 
Lee Finney has been elected Chair. Jade presented Lee with a gavel. 



v. Election of Vice Chair - Lee 
Susan nominated Sara for Vice Chair. Jade nominated Paul Katzeff, who declined nomination. 
Sara then declined nomination also. Paul then rescinded his decline. There being no further 
nominations, the vote was called on electing Paul Vice chair. 
VOTE: 
Lee:YES 
Paul: YES 
Susan:YES 
Sara: YES 
Jade: YES 
Paul Katzeff has been elected Vice Chair. 

VI. Election of Secretary - Lee 
Jade nominated Susan for Secretary. There being no further nominations, the vote was called 
on electing Susan as Secretary. 
VOTE: 
Lee: YES 
Paul: YES 
Susan: YES 
Sara: YES 
Jade: YES 
Susan Savage has been elected Secretary. 

VII. Election of Treasurer - Lee 
Susan nominated Jade for Treasurer. Sara nominated herself. Both candidates were asked 
to say a few words about their qualifications. Sara emphasized her professional experience 
and history of board service. Jade defined the position as the public face of the district as it 
establishes fiscal priorities. 
VOTE: 
Lee: JADE 
Paul: JADE 
Susan: JADE 
Sara: SARA 
Jade: JADE 
Jade Tippett has been elected Treasurer. 

VIII. Board comments: 
Paul: £ncouraged the Board to not let process get in th<> vvay of good policy dis<0ussiona. 

Susan: Expressed appreciation for every member of the Board and their willingness to step 
up to do the people's business. 
Jade: Thanked Adventist Health for the use of the Redwood Room for this meeting and 
encouraged the public to stay involved. 
Sara: Expressed concern for the conduct of the meeting that had skipped her input twice 
and emphasized the importance of public input. 
Lee: Encouraged the Board to focus on its commitment to the public as we rebuild trust, 
engage and educate the community, and strengthen relationships with all stakeholders. 



IX. Public Comments: 
Malcolm Macdonald raised a concern that presenting Lee with the gavel might raise 
Brown Act issues as it indicated foreknowledge that Lee would be elected Chair. 
Judy Leach thanked the District on behalf of Adventist Health for the use of the building. In 
the 2 ½ years since the lease was initiated, the hospital has moved from serious jeopardy of 
closing to an increased current patient census of 19, reflecting growing public confidence. 
An improved electronic medical record system (EMR) is in process of being deployed to 
provide greater access to health information for both doctors and patients. 
Gabriel Maroni suggested that any audits include an audit of services to provide a basis 
for building out healthcare services and suggested that affiliation with a university might 
be helpful in the future. 
Karen Bowers shared that a healthcare working group is forming to support the District 
and encouraged anyone interested to contact her at karenbowersu2@gmail.com . 
It was noted at 6:43 PM that the Zoom meeting was apparently not being recorded. This 
was rectified at that point, so any recording will reflect proceedings from 6:43 on. 

X. Rules of Order - Lee 
Susan moved and Jade seconded to adopt Roberts Rules of Order modified for small groups 
as the operating rules for conducting District business. There was discussion as to other 
possible models that might be considered. The question was called for. 
VOTE: 
Lee: YES 
Paul: ABSTAINED 
Susan: YES 
Sara: YES 
Jade: YES 
Roberts Rules of Order modified for small groups was adopted. 

XI. Minutes format - Susan 
Susan requested Board preferences as to how minutes should be handled. Paul moved and 
Sara seconded that draft minutes be made available to the Board and the public within 7 
days of any meeting, clearly watermarked as DRAFT and be posted on the website with any 
Zoom recordings. 
VOTE: 
Lee: YES 
Paul: YES 
Susan:YES 
Sara: YES 
Jade: YES 
So ordered. 

XII. Retirement Savings Accounts - Sara 
An issue has been raised concerning 401A and 403B retirement savings accounts in place 
with employees of the hospital prior to the lease with Adventist Sara has been in contact 
with the AIG plan representative and clarified that all participants in the 401A plans have 
received their funds and the account is closed. It is unclear at this time how many 
indiViduals remain in the 403B plan. Judy reminded the Board that Adventist cannot be 
involved, as this predated the lease agreement. Kendall' Smith shared a recent experience 



with a very similar situation involving a plan for county employees that required the sign
off of the plan sponsor. It was moved by Paul, seconded by Susan to ask Sara to continue 
conversations with the AIG representative to clarify what's needed and report back in 
writing at our next meeting. 
VOTE: 
Lee: YES 
Paul: YES 
Susan:YES 
Sara: YES 
Jade: YES 
So ordered. 

XIII. Report by Devenney Group - Jade 
Jade reported on a previously approved arrangement with the Deveney Group to evaluate 
the seismic retrofit options available to comply with the requirement to meet seismic 
standards by 2030. He also shared that there are grant funds available to help with the 
planning process that we should explore. While there is record of a proposal from the 
Devenney Group dating from November 2021, there was a question as to whether a 
contract for services was ever executed and who has a copy if so. It was moved by Jade, 
seconded by Susan to invite the Devenney Group to our next meeting for an update and to 
include as much back-up information as possible to the Board in writing in advance of the 
meeting. Kathy Wiley suggested that an ad hoc committee be created to shepherd the 
project and that seismic retrofit become a permanent agenda item. Norman De Vall 
requested that the Board give serious consideration to building a new hospital rather than 
just retrofitting the old one. 
VOTE: 
Lee: YES 
Paul: YES 
Susan: YES 
Sara: NO 
Jade: YES 
So ordered. 

XIV. Prior minutes - Sara 
Sara reported on the painstaking work she has been doing to identify missing minutes from 
the last 2 years and to create minutes from Zoom recordings where available. These 
minutes are needed for District audits. Susan volunteered to create a database of the status 
of minutes for each meeting held since the last posting on the website in 2020. It was 
moved by Paul, seconded by Jade to hire someone to transcribe and create minutes needed 

from any available Zoom files. A report of the status of past minutes was requested at the 
next meeting. 
VOTE: 
Lee: YES 
Paul: YES 
Susan:YES 
Sara: NO 
Jade: YES 
So ordered. 



XV. Break Requested - Lee 
A short 10-minute break was requested at 8:10 PM. The meeting was resumed at 8:20 PM. 

XVI. Board presence of attorney - Lee 
Lee reported that at this time, Alexander Henson is the attorney of record for the Board. 
This arrangement was authorized by the previous board on or about September 29, 2022, 
at approximately $300 an hour. It was moved by Jade, seconded by Susan, to request Mr. 
Henson's presence via Zoom at our meetings to provide legal interpretations and advice as 
needed. Kendall Smith voiced a concern about the very large expense this would incur and 
suggested that the Board check on what role an attorney present might play and possible 
limitations on their ability to comment during a meeting. Kathy Wiley suggested the need 
for clear procedures for access to legal services and suggested that perhaps running the 
agenda by legal counsel prior to posting might be more helpful with the option to 
determine whether a particular item might benefit from legal presence at the meeting. The 
previous motion was withdrawn. It was then moved by Jade and seconded by Paul to 
authorize the chair as the single point of contact to consult with the attorney on the 
proposed agenda and to determine if any further support at the meeting would be needed. 
Sara suggested that the Board should evaluate the current attorney as to whether there is a 
good match with his skill set. 
VOTE: 
Lee: YES 
Paul: NO 
Susan: YES 
Sara: NO 
Jade: YES 
Lee is hereby authorized to contact the attorney for this purpose. 

XVII. Organizational Discussion - Paul 
It was moved by Paul, seconded by Jade to move the organizational discussion to a special 
meeting or possibly a retreat. 
VOTE: 
Lee: YES 
Paul: YES 
Susan: YES 
Sara: YES 
Jade: YES 
Approved to move this item to a future special meeting or retreat. 

XVIII. Banking authorizations - Jade 
Jade introduced the following attached resolutions for adoption. Sara noted that these 
resolutions called for the addition of a third available signer where there had only been two 
in the past 



Resolution No 2023-01 to authorize the Chair, Secretary and Treasurer as signers on all 
current Bank of America accounts as attached and to require at least 2 signers for all 
transactions in excess of $10,000. 
VOTE: 
Lee:YES 
Paul: YES 
Susan: YES 
Sara: NO 
Jade: YES 
So authorized. 
Resolution No 2023-02 to authorize the Chair, Secretary and Treasurer as signers on all 
current Savings Bank of Mendocino County accounts as attached and to require at least 2 
signers for all transactions in excess of $10,000. 
VOTE: 
Lee:YES 
Paul: YES 
Susan:YES 
Sara: NO 
Jade: YES 
So authorized. 
Resolution No 2023-03 to authorize the Chair, Secretary and Treasurer as signers on all 
current Tri-Counties Bank accounts as attached and to require at least 2 signers for all 
transactions in excess of $10,000. 
VOTE: 
Lee: YES 
Paul: YES 
Susan:YES 
Sara: NO 
Jade: YES 
So authorized. 
Resolution No 2023-04 to authorize the deposit and withdrawal of District funds in the 
Local Agency Investment Fund in the California State Treasury in accordance with 
Government Code 16429.1 and to designate the Chair, Treasurer and Secretary or their 
successors to execute any and all documents necessary for this purpose. 
VOTE: 
Lee: YES 
Paul: YES 
Susan: YES 
Sara: NO 
Jade: YES 
So authorized. 

XIX. Pelican storage - Jade 
At this time, there is storage space at Pelican Storage in Fort Bragg for unused equipment 
and furniture that needed to be removed from the hospital. Prior Board member Norman 
De Vall arranged for storage space to accommodate at personal expense of $720 a month. It 
was moved by Jade, seconded by Sara, to change the contract with Pelican Storage from 
Norman as the owner/ responsible party to the District and to reimburse Norman for any 



expenses he has incurred for this storage facility. 
VOTE: 
Lee: YES 
Paul: YES 
Susan:YES 
Sara: YES 
Jade: YES 
So ordered. 

XX. Motion to continue - Susan 
It was moved by Susan and seconded by Jade to continue any items on the published 
agenda that have not been addressed at this meeting to the next meeting. 
VOTE: 
Lee:YES 
Paul: YES 
Susan:YES 
Sara: YES 
Jade: YES 
So ordered for inclusion on the next agenda. 

VIII. Adjournment - Lee 
Moved by Jade, seconded by Susan to adjourn. 
VOTE: 
Lee:YES 
Paul: YES 
Susan:YES 
Sara: YES 
Jade: YES 
Meeting adjourned at 9:03 PM 

Next meeting: 
January 26 at 6:00 PM 
Thanksgiving Coffee 
19100 S. Harbor Dr. 
Fort Bragg, CA 
Zoom option will be provided 

I hereby certify that all the information contained in these minutes is true and correct. 

Respectfully submitted, 

W~~.#~ 
Susan K Savage, Secretary 

*Minutes approved 1/26/2023 



MENDOCINO COAST HEALTH CARE DISTRICT 
RESOLUTION NO. 2023-02 

WHEREAS, the Mendocino Coast Health Care District (hereinafter "District") maintains 
various bank accounts with the Savings Bank of Mendocino County; and 

WHEREAS, due to the District having new Board of Director Officers and no Chief 
Executive Officer, it is necessary to notify the Savings Bank of Mendocino County of the needed 
changes of signatory authority and 

WHEREAS, all persons who act as authorized signatories for the District are required to 
be covered under BET A Directors & Officers Healthcare Insurance Program for government 
entities for the benefit of Mendocino Coast Health Care District 

A complete list of the District's accounts (last four numbers) at the Savings Bank of Mendocino 
County is attached to this Resolution as EXHIBIT A and incorporated by reference herein as 
though set forth in full. 

NOW, THEREFORE, IT IS ORDERED AND RESOLVED that the following District 
Officers and/or Directors of the District have authority to disburse or withdraw funds from the 
District's bank accounts with Savings Bank of Mendocino County: Lee Finney, Chair of the 
Board of Directors or Susan Savage, Secretary of the Board of Directors or Jade Tippett, 
Treasurer of the Board Directors. Disbursement or withdrawals of District funds in excess of 
$10,000.00 require the authorization of at least two (2) of the Officers/ Directors identified in 
this Resolution. 

The Board of Directors of the Mendocino Coast Health Care District at a Special 
meeting he Board passed this Resolution on Janu 12, 2 23 by the following vote. 

NOES: _____________________ _ 
Sara Spring 

ABSENT: None 

ABSTAIN: None 

A~ 

susanSavage,Secre~f Directors 



MENDOCINO COAST HEALTH CARE DISTRICT 
BANK ACCOUNTS 

ACCOUNT ACCT# 

SA VIN GS BANK OF MENDOCINO 

GIFT & MEMORIAL 
PLAN FUND 
CORPORATE ACCOUNT 
HOME HEALTH & HOSPICE 

EXHIBIT A 

*0686 
*33748 
*30660 
*30678 



Secretary of State 

Registry of Public Agencies 
(Government Code section 53051) 

IMPORTANT- Read Instructions before completing this form. 

There is No Fee for a Registry of Public Agencies filing 

Copy Fees - First page $1.00; each attachment page $0.50; 
Certification Fee - $5.00 

1. Type of Filing (Check one.) 

SF-405 FILED 
Secretary of Statll 
State of California 

JUN 02 2023 

This Space For Office Use Only 

D Initial Filing (first Registry of Public Agencies filing for an agency) 

El Updated Filing (change to an existing Registry of Public Agencies record) 

·~. z, Agency mfurmation ··· 

a. Full Legal Name of Public Agency 

Mendocino Coast Health Care District 
b. Nature of Update (complete if Updated Filing) 

u f'°t:>,A-~ O~-F1c-~ A~u ~'JW.-5) Vl)..e.a-.E ~ N.A--me:-..i ~3) A-~?G'SS~s. 
c. County 

Mendocino 
I d. Official Mailing Address 

P.O. Bx 579, Fort Bragg, CA, 95437 
3. Chairperson, President, or Other Presiding Officer 

a. Name 

Lee Finney 
c. Business or Residence Address 

44561 Gordon Lane, Mendocino, CA 95460 

4. Clerk or Secretary 

a. Name 

Susan Savage 
c. Business or Residence Address 

I 
b. Title 

Chair 

I 
b. Title 

Secretary 

31101 Thomas Lane, Fort Bragg, CA 95437 
5. Other Members of the Governing Board (Enter as many as applicable. Attach additional pages for additional members.) 

Name Business or Residf:nce Address 

Jade Tippett 236 Park Street, Fort Bragg, CA 95437 
Name Business or Residence Address 

Paul Katzef 43876 Road 409, Mendocino, CA 95460 
Name Business or Residence Address 

Sara Spring 41751 Little River Airport Road, Little River, 
Name Business or Residence Address 

Name Business or Residence Address 

6. Date and Sign Below (Additional members set forth on attached pages, if any, are incorporated herein by reference and made part of this 
Form SF-405, Registry of Public Agencies.) 

4/5/23 
Date Signature 

SF-405 (REV 12/2019) 

Jade Tippett, Treasurer 
Type or Print Name 

2019 California Secretary of State 
bizfile.sos.ca.gov 



~ lnterna1 ?0 .Yenue S.ervL ~ 

District 
Director 

Ms. Julie Vichi 
Assistant Chief Financial Officer 
Mendocino Coast Hospital District 
700 River Drive 
Fort Bragg, CA 95437 

r:C(,,v. 9 & Y tJt J{) 

Departm~ . c of the Treasury 

P.O. Box 2350 Los Angeles, Calif. 90053 

Person to Contact: 

Barbara S. Cowans 
Telephone Number: 

(213) 894-2336 
Refer Reply to: 

rfa9e~ 0 4 2 0) 9 3 

June 29, 1993 

RE: Mendocino Coast Hospital District 
EIN: 95-2627981 

Gentlemen: 

This letter is in response to your request for a copy of 
the determination letter for the above named organization. 

Our records indicate that this organization was recognized 
to be exempt from Federal Income Tax in April 1986 as 
described in Internal Revenue Code Section 501(c) (3). It is 
further classified as an organization that is not a private 
foundation as defined in Section 509(a) of the code, because it 
is an organization described in Section 170(b) (1) (A) (vi). 

The exempt status for the determination letter issued 
in April 1986 continues to be in effect, subject to an 
advance ruling period until December 1990. 

If you need further assistance, please contact our office 
at the above address or telephone number. 

Sincerely, 

'{)OAtmNv J. ~/U-
BARBARA S. COWANS 
Disclosure Assistant 


	Letter of Instruction 07-13-2023.pdf
	Untitled.PDF

